
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 16, 2017 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS 
LISTED WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-
CONTROVERSIAL BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" 
REPRESENTS THE CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE 
CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO 
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE 
ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD CONCERNING THE ITEM 
BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any 
matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members 
may respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a 
question for clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff 
to report back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to 
direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE 
LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE 
MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

  
RECOGNITION 

 
3) Presentation by the Chief Medical Officer recognizing the Antimicrobial Stewardship 

program at Kern Medical –  
MAKE PRESENTATION    

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

July 19, 2017 –  
APPROVE 

 
5) Public hearing regarding the meet and confer impasse between representatives of 

the Kern County Hospital Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 
521, and Resolution implementing the Kern Medical Center Disciplinary Policy – 

OPEN HEARING; CLOSE HEARING; APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION; DIRECT 
STAFF TO IMPLEMENT  

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 6 to Agreement 194-2012 with Ravi Patel, M.D. 

Inc., doing business as Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center, an independent 
contractor, for medical practice management services at Kern Medical leased clinics, 
extending the term for one year from August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2017, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $1,200,000, from $2,146,000 to $3,346,000, to 
cover the extended term – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 453-2015 with Comprehensive 

Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional 
medical services in the Department of Medicine, extending the term for one year from 
August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$430,000, from $1,055,000 to $1,485,000, to cover the extended term –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  
 
CA 
8) Proposed Change Order No. 2 to Agreement 2016-052 Best Electric, an independent 

contractor, for construction management services related to the emergency power 
distribution upgrades, increasing the maximum payable by $34,736 to $698,957, to 
cover the cost of additional services –  

 MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
10% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE 

 
CA 
9) Proposed Change Order No. 5 to Agreement 2016-074 with Anderson Group 

International, an independent contractor, for construction management services 
related to the infusion clinic project, increasing the maximum payable by $50,322 to 
$510,649, to cover the cost of additional services –  

 MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
5% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE 

 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 16016 with Experian Health, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for patient demographic verification products and 
services, effective July 1, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $300,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN  
 
CA 
11)  Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Linda Markham, 

as Per Diem Medical Social Worker, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective August 17, 2017 –    
APPROVE 

 
CA 
12) Request approval of Medical Staff policies concerning Telemedicine, Guidelines for 

Addressing Impaired Medical Staff Members, and the Late Career Practitioner –  
 APPROVE POLICIES 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

13) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Wedad M. 
Rizkalla, M.D., as Associate-Pediatrics, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective September 4, 2017 –    
APPROVE 

 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
  
15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of July 31, 2017 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  
  
18)  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: Two (2) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal 
counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or 
some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, 
which non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection – 
 

19) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 
(Government Code Section 54957) –  

 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2017, AT 11:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior 
to the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 
California, or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably 
accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative 
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a 
meeting whenever possible. 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

CA 
16) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF JULY 31, 2017 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

A) Claim in the matter of Genoveva Robles v. County of Kern 
B) Claim in the matter of Melvin Robles v. County of Kern 
C) Claim in the matter of Dr. Martin L. Goldman v. County of Kern 
D) Claim in the matter of Dr. Martin L. Goldman v. Kern County Hospital Authority 

 
 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Presentation by the Chief Medical Officer recognizing the Antimicrobial Stewardship 

program at Kern Medical 
 
Recommended Action: Make presentation 

 
Summary: 
 
Presentation by the Chief Medical Officer recognizing the Antimicrobial Stewardship program at 
Kern Medical.

 



Antimicrobial Stewardship 
Program 

Board of Governor’s Meeting 

August 16, 2017 



Recognition 

Brittany Andruszko, PharmD (Clinical Pharmacist) 
Jeff Jolliff, PharmD (Lead Clinical Pharmacist) 

Royce Johnson, MD (Physician Champion) 
Kristi Wood, RN (Infection Control Nurse) 

Dana Mejia (Microbiologist) 



Did you know… 

 50% Hospitalized patients receive an antibiotic 

50% Antibiotics prescribed in hospitals are unnecessary or inappropriate 

33% Antibiotics prescribed in hospital have errors (dose, duration, drug) 

20% Hospitalized patients who receive antibiotics have 1+ side effects 

1:7 Chance acquiring superbug in short-term hospital 

2 million + Illnesses due to antibiotic resistance in US each year 

23,000 + Deaths due to antibiotic resistance in US each year 



Kaiser Foundation Community Benefit 
Grant Program (2011)  
Grant: $300,000 over 2 Years 

ASP (Antimicrobial Stewardship Program) 
• Ensure antibiotics will be used safely, effectively and judiciously 

 

ASP Team 
• Infectious Disease Physicians, Pharmacist, Microbiology, Infection 

Control 
 

ASP Team Areas of Focus: 
• The 4 D’s: right DRUG, DOSE, DE-ESCALATION, DURATION 

• 48 hour “time out” (de-escalation, discontinuation, etc.) 

• Patient response 

• Dose optimization 

• Change Route(Intravenous to Oral, prior authorization, etc.) 

• Prospective audit and feedback to prescribers 



Process 

Patient Antibiotic 
Report (100/day) or 
Case Referral from 

Rounds 

Identify Patient 
Candidates for 
Intervention 

Provider Outreach & 
Recommendations 

Discontinue Rx 

Transition Rx 

Change Duration 

Education/Feedback 



Program Outcomes 

Interventions 

• >95% of all Program    
recommendations are accepted 

• Majority of recommendations 
involved de-escalation or dose 
optimization of Antibiotic therapy 

 

Cost Savings 
• Nearly doubled each year! 

• 2014 = $511,012 

• 2015 = $1,287,534 

• 2016 = $2,458,334 

 

0

200

400

600

800

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Accepted Interventions 

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

$0

$1

$2

$3

2014 2015 2016

Millions Saved 



Summary 

• > 95% Program recommendations are accepted 
 

• Cost avoidance of $5,109,542 since 2014! 

• Program continues to be cost effective 

• Increasing pharmacy staff involvement 
 

• Kaiser Permanente Community Benefit Grant 
Return on Investment =  1703% 



Recognition 

Brittany Andruszko, PharmD (Clinical Pharmacist) 
Jeff Jolliff, PharmD (Lead Clinical Pharmacist) 

Royce Johnson, MD (Physician Champion) 
Kristi Wood, RN (Infection Control Nurse) 

Dana Mejia (Microbiologist) 



 

 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, July 19, 2017 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Sistrunk 
Directors absent: Pelz 

 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any 
matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members 
may respond briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a 
question for clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff 
to report back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to 
direct the staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE 
LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE 
MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
 
ELIZABETH JACKSON, NP, PEDIATIRCS, HEARD REGARDING STATUS OF 
THE KERN MEDICAL DISCIPLINE POLICY 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  7.19.17 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff 
or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda 
(Government Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
DIRECTOR BERJIS REPORTED ON THE RECENT KERN MEDICAL RESIDENT 
AND FELLOW GRADUATION AND THANKED ALL WHO ATTENDED 
 
DIRECTOR MCGAULEY THANKED STAFF FOR THE CARE ONE OF HER 
COLLEAGUES RECEIVED AT KERN MEDICAL FOLLOWING AN ACCIDENT 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the Kern Medical Engineering 
staff on the recent Labor & Delivery unit remodeling project –  
MADE PRESENTATION   

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

June 21, 2017 –  
APPROVED  
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Amendment No. 1 with United Neuroscience, Inc., an independent 

contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine, 
extending the term for two years from October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2019, 
adding seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage, and increasing the maximum 
payable by $1,498,000, from $1,260,000 to $2,758,000, to cover the term – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-047 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
CA 
6) Proposed Amendment No. 1 with Valley Neurosurgery and Neurorestoration Center, 

a Medical Corporation, an independent contractor, for professional medical services 
in the Department of Surgery, adding neurophysiological monitoring services and 
mid-level practitioner support, and increasing the maximum payable by $1,547,607, 
from $9,120,425 to $10,668,425, to cover the term –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-048 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  7.19.17 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with M. Brandon Freeman, M.D., a contract employee, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from July 17, 2017 
through July 16, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $1,100,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-049 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
CA 
8)  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 4 to Agreement 319-2012 with Mansoor Gilani, 

D.D.S, an independent contractor, for the provision of dental services to adult inmates 
in detention facilities owned and operated by the County of Kern, extending the term 
for two years from June 1, 2017 through May 31, 2019, and increasing the maximum 
payable by $240,000, from $600,000 to $840,000, to cover the extended term – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-050 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
CA 
9) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employees Jeffrey Hill, as 

Per Diem Nurse II, John Caldwell, as Per Diem Pharmacist, and Florence Alacar, as 
Per Diem Nurse II, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 hours, whichever 
occurs first, effective July 20, 2017; and request to employ retired Kern County 
employee Debra Pershadsingh, as Administrative Coordinator, for the period ending 
October 31, 2018, or 960 hours, whichever occurs first, effective July 20, 2017 – 
APPROVED 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
10) Proposed election of officers to the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of 

Governors to include Russell Bigler, Chair, Philip McLaughlin, Vice-Chair, and Nancy 
Lawson, Secretary/Treasurer, terms to expire June 30, 2019 – 
ELECTED OFFICERS  
Berjis-Sistrunk: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 
 

11) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report – 
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 
12) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report – 

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 
 

CA 
13) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of June 30, 2017 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Pelz 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  7.19.17 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Sistrunk-McGauley 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
14) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
15) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
16) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organization: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government 
Claims Act or some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening 
litigation, which non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection 
– SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource Anesthesiology 
Associates of California, A Medical Corporation, a California Corporation v. County of 
Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-101504 SDS – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Lawson-McGauley 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 14 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR 
MCGAULEY, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR LAWSON; 1 ABSENT - PELZ), THE 
BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR REAPPOINTMENT, 
RELEASE OF PROCTORING, AND VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES; 
NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  7.19.17 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
Item No. 15 concerning REQUES FOR CLOSED SESSION regarding peer review of 
health facilities (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 16 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Agency 
designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organization: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 17 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: Two 

(2) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government 
Claims Act or some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening 
litigation, which non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Resource 
Anesthesiology Associates of California, A Medical Corporation, a California 
Corporation v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-
101504 SDS – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2017 AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 
 
 
/s/ Raquel D. Fore 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority  



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Public hearing regarding the meet and confer impasse between representatives of the 

Kern County Hospital Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 521, and 
Resolution implementing the Kern Medical Center Disciplinary Policy 
 
Recommended Action: Open Hearing; Close Hearing; Approve; Adopt Resolution; Direct Staff to 

Implement 
 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical, in preparation for the transition to the Kern County Hospital Authority, opened 
negotiations with SEIU in November 2015 on policies intended to replace rules and practices previously 
governed by the county’s civil service rules.  The enabling statute provides that “the authority shall not 
be governed by or subject to the civil service requirements of the county.”  The proposed Discipline 
Policy replaces the civil service rules related to discipline and details the process for disciplinary actions 
under the Authority.   

 
The Authority uses a progressive discipline process, providing employees with multiple opportunities to 
modify and improve performance. Verbal counseling(s) and written warning(s) generally precede a 
disciplinary action that results in demotion, reduction in pay, suspension or termination.  The proposed 
policy outlines a process in which employees may appeal these proposed disciplinary actions.  This 
process includes two available appeals by the employee before the final action is rendered. The 
Authority and SEIU, Local 521 agree on the policy language with the exception of the final appeal 
process. 

 
Having met and conferred with SEIU, Local 521 numerous times on this policy, the Authority issued a 
last, best and final offer in September 2016, and in November 2016, your Board approved a formal 
declaration of impasse.  Formal mediation did not produce a tentative agreement, and a fact-finding 
panel met in May 2017.   

 
The Authority has carefully considered and does not agree with the recommendation of the fact-finding 
panel chair.  The Authority’s recommended appeal process provides represented employees with 
multiple levels of appeal and considers the recommendation of a third-party hearing officer but does not 
bind the Authority to the hearing officer’s decision.   

 



 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

The Authority has legitimate concerns in transferring binding disciplinary decisions to an outside party 
who may or may not fully understand the hospital’s operations and who does not have a vested interest 
in making the right decision for both the employee and the hospital. 

 
The Authority has judiciously considered the steps in the appeal process and has reviewed historical data 
to ensure that the recommendations made would guarantee a fair and impartial process for employees.   

 
A summary of the disciplinary actions from 2011 to 2017 (YTD) below shows the number of proposed 
disciplinary actions that would result in suspension, demotion, reduction in pay and termination.  Of 
note is the fact that between 2011 and 2017, there have been three hospital CEO’s who have “heard” 
discipline cases. In 16 cases, the CEO opted to modify the proposed order after reviewing the facts and 
evidence presented.  In the proposed Disciplinary Policy, the CEO simply retains that same right to 
uphold or modify the recommended action – just at a later stage in the appeal process.   In addition, only 
three of the proposed actions were appealed and heard by the Civil Service Commission, and in all three 
cases, the Commission upheld the decision of the CEO. 

 
Summary of Suspensions, Demotions, Reductions in Pay and Terminations 2011 – 2017 YTD 

*Post Hospital Authority 
 
 

Based on our concerns regarding outside party decisions and based on the data showing the 
Authority has administered the discipline process in a fair and consistent manner, it is 
recommended that your Board adopt the proposed resolution and direct staff to implement the 
Disciplinary Policy effective August 16, 2017. 
 

TYPE OF ACTION 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 

H.A.* 

2017 TOTALS 

# of Disciplinary Actions 

Proposed 

30 21 42 66 28 16 13 28 244 

# of Appeals Modified 

(Reduced) by CEO Decision 

3 0 3 2 2 1 0 2 13 

# of Appeals Heard by Civil 

Service Commission 

2 0 1 0 0 0 n/a n/a 3 

# of Appeals Upheld by Civil 

Service Commission 

2 0 1 0 0 0 n/a n/a 3 

# of Appeals Heard by 2nd 

Step Appeal Process 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 1 
pending 

1 
pending 



Kern County  
Hospital Authority 

Proposed Disciplinary Process 

August 16, 2017 



Discipline Process  
Negotiations Timeline 

• September 2015 –Kern Medical provides SEIU with copies of 
several policies to be negotiated to replace County’s Civil 
Service procedures 

• Numerous meetings over 12 months  

• Successfully negotiated all but discipline policy 

• September 2016 -, Kern Medical presents  Last Best and Final 
proposal on Discipline Policy after numerous meetings with SEIU 

• Two more meetings held to try and reach resolution on binding 
vs. non-binding arbitration issue 

• February 2017 – Both parties meet with state mediator try and 
reach agreement 

• May 2017 – Fact-finding panel w/neutral chairman meets with 
both parties 

• June 2017 – Neutral fact-finding chairman presents 
recommendations; union concurs with recommendation, 
Authority dissents (disagrees)  



Discipline Process Start to Finish 
(Steps may vary depending on the offense) 

Employee is not 
meeting performance 

expectations or violates 
a policy/procedure 

Verbal 
Coaching/Counseling  

(may be multiple 
events) 

Written Warning  

(may include one or 
more warnings) 

Suspension, Demotion 
or Reduction in Pay is 

ordered 

(Employee may appeal) 

Termination is ordered 

(Employee may appeal) 



Discipline Process  
Overview of an Appeal 

Employees receives discipline 
order resulting in suspension, 
reduction in pay, demotion or 

termination; disagrees and 
requests an appeal 

Hospital Administrator 
meets with employee; 
reviews evidence and 

testimony; renders 
decision to uphold, 

modify, or rescind order 

Employee disagrees 
with Administrator 

decision and requests 
an appeal 

Third party hearing officer/ 
arbitrator chosen by mutual 

agreement; conducts full 
evidentiary hearing.  Hearing 

officer provides advisory 
decision to CEO 

CEO reviews hearing 
officer recommendation 
and renders decision to 

uphold or modify 
discipline order 

Employee receives final 
decision along with 

information regarding 
right to file petition for 

writ of mandate in 
superior court 



Discipline Process 
Authority’s Position on Appeal Process 

 

• Former appeal system under Civil Service viewed as 
effective and fair 
 

• Desire to establish process closely aligned with the 
appeal levels of Civil Service process 
 

• Historically low number of appeals indicate due 
consideration is given to disciplinary decisions by CEO 
 

• Outside party with limited knowledge of hospital 
operations and regulatory requirements should not be 
ultimate decision maker 



Discipline Process  
Comparison of Appeal Processes  

Appeal Level/Review County (Former) Authority Position SEIU Position 

Level 1 Appeal 
Employee appeals notice 
of discipline 
 

Appeal is heard by Civil Service 
Commission - full evidentiary 
hearing 

3rd party hearing officer/arbitrator 
selected by mutual agreement 
• officer conducts full evidentiary 

hearing and issues advisory 
decision to CEO 

•  CEO reviews hearing officer/ 
arbitrator recommendation & 
renders final decision 

3rd party hearing officer/ 
arbitrator selected by mutual 
agreement 
• arbitrator conducts full 

evidentiary hearing and 
issues final and binding 
decision 

 

Level 2 Appeal 
Employee disagrees with 
decision 
 

Employee may appeal via 
petition for writ of mandate to 
superior court 

Employee may appeal via petition 
for writ of mandate to superior 
court 

Limited judicial review – 
extremely limited 
circumstances in which 
decision can be overturned 
 
 

Standard of Review for 
appeals at Level 2 
 

Decision can be reviewed for 
fact, evidence and law 
supporting decision 
 

Reviewable for fact, evidence and 
law supporting decision 

Error in law, fact or evidence is 
not basis to overturn decision; 
Must have evidence of 
collusion, corruption or fraud 
on part of hearing officer/ 
arbitrator to overturn decision 
 



Summary of Suspensions, Demotions, Pay 
Reductions and Terminations  
2011 – to Present 

TYPE OF ACTION 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
2016 

H.A.* 
2017 TOTALS 

# of Disciplinary 

Actions Proposed 

30 21 42 66 28 16 13 28 244 

# of Appeals 

Modified (Reduced) 

by CEO Decision 

3 0 3 2 2 1 0 2 13 

# of Appeals Heard by 

Civil Service 

Commission 

2 0 1 0 0 0 n/a n/a 3 

# of Appeals Upheld 

by Civil Service 

Commission 

2 0 1 0 0 0 n/a n/a 3 

# of Appeals Heard by 

2nd Step Appeal 

Process 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 1  
pending 

1  
pending 

*Post Hospital Authority Transition 



Discipline Process 
Additional Information 

• Three different CEOs have heard disciplinary cases over 
the past five years 

• 13 disciplinary actions were modified by those CEOs 
(reduced or held in abeyance) after considering 
evidence and employee testimony 

• In Authority’s proposed policy, the CEO continues to 
review disciplinary cases – just at a later stage in the 
process 

 



Discipline Process 
Summary and Recommendations  

• Authority and SEIU have spent many hours negotiating 
this policy 

• Authority has carefully and thoughtfully considered all 
aspects of binding vs. non-binding arbitration 

• Authority feels strongly that discipline decisions should 
ultimately be made by management, but will fully 
consider hearing officer/arbitrator recommendations 

• Authority recommends the Board of Governors adopt 
resolution to implement Disciplinary Policy 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
_________________ 

 

 

In the matter of:             Resolution No. __________ 

 

RESOLVING AN IMPASSE IN NEGOTIATIONS 

BETWEEN REPRESENTATIVES OF THE KERN 

COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY AND SERVICE 

EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 

521, AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE KERN 

MEDICAL CENTER DISCIPLINE POLICY SET 

FORTH IN THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY’S LAST, BEST AND FINAL OFFER  
_____________________________________ 

 

 I, RAQUEL D. FORE, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 

Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director 

__________, seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the 

Board of Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof 

on the 16th day of August, 2017, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution 

has been delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  

 

AYES:   

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

                RAQUEL D. FORE  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 

   Kern County Hospital Authority  

          

 

                 ____________________________ 

                 Raquel D. Fore             
 

             

 

RESOLUTION 

 

Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   

(a) The majority of Kern Medical Center (“KMC”) employees are represented 

by Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (“SEIU”).   



Page 2 of 3 

 

(b) Health and Safety Code section 101853.1, subdivision (d) requires that the 

Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) between the County of Kern and SEIU remain 

in effect for 24 months following the date of transfer of ownership of KMC to the Kern 

County Hospital Authority (“Authority”) unless modified by mutual agreement; and   

 

(c) The MOU does not cover appeals of major discipline and terminations 

because that process is set forth in the rules of the county’s Civil Service Commission.  

The Civil Service Commission was divested of such jurisdiction upon the transfer of 

ownership of KMC to the Authority (Health & Saf. Code, § 101855, subd. (b)(1)(A)); and 

 

(d) Commencing on April 6, 2016, representatives of the Authority and SEIU 

engaged in multiple meet and confer sessions and did so in good faith and in compliance 

with Government Code section 3500 et seq. in an effort to adopt procedures to replace the 

civil service rules.  Tentative agreement was reached in all areas except the final 

administrative step for disciplinary appeals; and 

 

(e)  On September 15, 2016, the Authority presented SEIU with a last, best, and 

final offer (“LBFO”).  The parties met on November 17, 2016, to review and discuss 

provisions of the LBFO without resolution; and  

 

(f) On November 21, 2016, the Board the Governors approved a formal 

declaration of impasse, which was presented to SEIU. 

 

 (g) Following mediation with a state mediator in a further effort to reach 

agreement, SEIU timely notified the state Public Employment Relations Board of its desire 

to move the dispute to fact-finding pursuant to Government Code section 3505.4; and 

 

(h) The Authority and SEIU engaged in the factfinding process on May 3, 

2017, before a three-member factfinding panel comprised of a mutually-selected neutral, 

an SEIU representative, and an Authority representative.  That process has concluded with 

advisory findings of fact and recommended terms of settlement issued by the factfinding 

neutral, with a concurrence by SEIU, and a dissent by the Authority, with the advisory 

findings of facts and recommended terms of settlement received by the Authority on June 

30, 2017; and  

 

(i) The Authority published and made the advisory finding of facts and 

recommended terms of settlement publicly available within 10 days of receipt, on July 10, 

2017, and that report has remained publicly available since that date; and 

  

(j) The Board of Governors received and considered the factfinding report; and 

  

(k) Government Code section 3505.7 states that a public agency may, after any 

applicable mediation and factfinding procedures have been exhausted, and after holding a 

public hearing regarding the impasse, implement its last, best, and final offer; and 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

(l) On August 16, 2017, during a regular meeting, the Board of Governors held 

a public hearing regarding the impasse between the Authority and the SEIU, prior to 

resolving the impasse. 

 

Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 

Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 

 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 

Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 

 

2. Unless otherwise indicated in this Resolution, the following changes in 

terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the unit represented by SEIU 

shall be implemented concurrent with the Board of Governors passage, approval, and 

adoption of this Resolution.  This resolution shall take precedence over any conflicting 

rules, regulations, policies, Memoranda of Understanding or other documentary provisions. 

  

3. This Board hereby approves and adopts the August 16, 2017, Kern Medical 

Center Discipline Policy document applicable to SEIU, accompanying this Resolution as 

Exhibit “A.” 

 

4. The Authority Board Coordinator shall certify to the passage and adoption 

of this Resolution and its approval by the Board of Governors and shall deliver copies of 

this Resolution to the following: 

   

Kern County Hospital Authority   

Kern Medical Center 

  Human Resources Department 

  Service Employees International Union, Local 521 

   



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 



  1 of 6       

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

DISCIPLINARY POLICY 

LAST, BEST & FINAL OFFER 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2016 
 

 

An employee may only be disciplined for job-related performance and/or job-related conduct, including off-duty 

conduct which has a nexus to the employee’s ability to perform his or her job at Kern Medical or the Hospital 

Authority.   

 

With the exception of layoffs for organization necessity, discipline, up to and including termination, shall be for 

just cause.  For purposes of this policy, “for just cause” shall have the same meaning as commonly used among 

labor arbitrators and developed throughout labor arbitration.   

 

This policy applies only to represented employees. Confidential, management, mid-management and non-

represented employees are excluded from this policy.    

 

 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE 

 

In an effort to modify substandard performance, a constructive and progressive discipline process will generally be 

used unless the performance or conduct is of such a nature to warrant serious disciplinary action without first going 

through progressive disciplinary steps. 

 

Progressive disciplinary actions may affect an employee’s future advancement or employment.   

 

Progressive discipline process means the following steps are taken in a timely manner (Note:  Some or all of steps 

may be skipped or the order changed, depending on the severity of the conduct and overall circumstances):   

 

a. Performance coaching 

b. Written reprimand  

c. Suspension without pay 

d. Reduction in pay 

e. Demotion  

f. Termination of employment 

 

Each situation is evaluated on the basis of its own factual circumstances to ensure the proposed disciplinary action 

is reasonable under the circumstances.  Factors considered include but are not limited to: 

 

a. The employee’s past work and disciplinary history, including the nature of other offenses; 

b. The character of the position to which the employee is assigned (the more responsible the position, 

the more exacting is the standard of performance or conduct on and off the job); and 

c. The nature and consequences of the offense. 

 

A partial list of reasons for discipline can be found in Exhibit A, attached. 

 

PERFORMANCE COACHING 

 

Performance coaching is an attempt to handle problems before they seriously hamper an employee’s effectiveness.  

A verbal counseling is generally the first step taken in situations of a minor nature involving the violation(s) of a 



  2 of 6       

rule, regulation, standard of conduct, safety practice, or authorized instruction.  The employee is interviewed and 

informed of the specific infraction or breach of conduct and is permitted to explain his or her conduct or action of 

commission or omission. 

 

Verbal counselings are generally made at or shortly after the time of the offense or immediately upon the 

supervisor’s knowledge that the offense has occurred. 

 

 

LEVEL 1 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS – WRITTEN REPRIMANDS 

 

Employees receiving a Level 1 written reprimand will be provided with the following information: 

 

a. The reason for the reprimand, the date it will be effective, and the specific grounds and particular 

facts upon which the disciplinary action is being taken; 

b. The non-confidential materials upon which the action is based (which may include confidential 

material with redacted information); and 

c. A statement informing the employee of his or her right to appeal in the manner set forth in this 

policy. 

 

LEVEL 2 DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS – UNPAID SUSPENSIONS, REDUCTIONS IN PAY, DEMOTIONS 

AND TERMINATIONS 

 

See Exhibit B, outlining the process for Level 2 disciplinary actions. 

 

 

APPEAL PROCESS 

 

Neither probationary nor temporary employees shall have the right to appeal any disciplinary action. 

 

 

Level 1 Disciplinary Actions – Appeal Process 

 

Employees receiving a Level 1 written reprimand may provide a written rebuttal within 30 days from the date of the 

reprimand.  This rebuttal will be placed in the employee’s personnel file along with the written reprimand. 

 

Level 2 Disciplinary Actions Appeal Process 

 

See Exhibit B, outlining the process for Level 2 disciplinary actions. 

 

 

Employees who do not appeal a Level 2 disciplinary action within the prescribed timelines outlined herein waive all 

rights to an appeal.  The proposed action(s) will be upheld and the employee will be notified through an Order 

Letter outlining the following: 

 

 The ordered action and date to be imposed 

 The specific rule violations and the acts or omissions that warrant the ordered action 

 Notification of waiver of appeal rights 

  



  3 of 6       

 

SHARED COST OF ARBITRATION 

 

All costs associated with arbitration will be shared equally between the Hospital Authority and the employee 

organization. 

 

 

TIMING OF TERMINATIONS 

 

Employees for whom termination has been proposed may be terminated upon Step 1 affirmation of the termination 

decision.  If the employee appeals the Step 1 decision and the hearing officer disagrees with the decision and the 

CEO confirms a reversal of the decision, the employee will be reinstated with back pay from the date of 

termination. 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITH PAY IN CONJUNCTION WITH DISCIPLINE 

 

The Human Resources department may place an employee on administrative leave with pay if it is determined that 

the employee is engaged in conduct posing a danger to Hospital Authority property, the public or other employees, 

or if the continued presence of the employee at the work site will hinder an investigation of the employee’s alleged 

misconduct or will severely disrupt the business of the Hospital Authority or employee’s assigned department. 

 

During the paid administrative leave, the employee shall be ordered to remain at home and available by telephone 

during the normally assigned work day.  The Employee Relations Representative (ERR) may, if necessary, adjust 

the employee’s work schedule to provide availability during normal business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 

a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  No overtime or other specialty pay (excluding longevity pay) will be paid to an employee while 

on Paid Administrative Leave. 

 

Employees who violate the provisions of paid administrative leave or who do not adhere to prescribed directives 

during the disciplinary process forfeit their eligibility to remain on paid status. 

 

 

 



  4 of 6       

Exhibit A 

 
Reasons for Discipline.  Each of the following may constitute a reason for disciplinary action; but such action shall 

not be restricted to the particular reasons listed below, the disciplinary action may be based on other reasons,: 

 

1. Fraud, dishonesty or omission in securing the appointment, including misrepresentation in an employment 

application or other documents submitted before employment, or oral misrepresentations. 

2. Incompetence or general unfitness for the assigned position. 

3. Inefficiency. 

4. Neglect of duty. 

5. Unsatisfactory job performance. 

6. Reporting to work or working while impaired by alcohol, medically prescribed medications which could 

foresee ably interfere with the safe and effective performance of duties or the operation of the hospital, or 

illegal drugs. 

7. Willful disobedience. 

8. Insubordination. 

9. Inexcusable absence without leave. 

10. Discourteous treatment of the general public or fellow employees. 

11. Willful misuse, damage or waste of public property, supplies or equipment. 

12. Disorderly conduct. 

13. Dishonesty. 

14. Conviction of a felony or any offense involving moral turpitude. 

15. Failure to maintain confidentiality in hospital or patient records. 

16. Any failure of good behavior or acts either during or outside of assigned working hours which are 

incompatible with or obstructive, harmful, detrimental, or destructive  to the public service. 

17. Engaging in business or accepting outside employment while an employee of the Authority which is 

incompatible with Authority employment or gives rise to a conflict of interest. 

18. Failure to maintain the standards, licenses, qualifications, or training required for a specific position. 

19. Violation of Authority policies and procedures. 

20. In possession, in use, under the influence of, or trafficking in a controlled substance or narcotics, except when 

prescribed for the employee by his/her doctor, during the employee’s working hours or at his/her work site. 

21. Falsifying or making a material omission on Authority document (e.g., time card, Authority/hospital record). 

22. Possessing or bringing firearms, weapons, or hazardous or dangerous devices onto Authority property. 

23. Theft of Authority property or unauthorized possession of property that belongs to the Authority or another 

employee, patient, or visitor to the hospital. 

24. Misconduct. 

25. Violations of regulatory or compliance provisions that the Hospital Authority is required to meet. 

 

It is impossible to provide an exhaustive list that identifies every type of conduct that may result in disciplinary 

action.  However in order to offer employees some guidance, the aforementioned list provides examples of conduct 

that may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

  



  5 of 6       

Exhibit B 

Level 2 Disciplinary Action  

Notice and Appeal Process 

 
In the event the Authority proposes to impose a Level 2 disciplinary action as described in this policy, the process 

set forth below will be followed. 

 

Employees receiving a Level 2 disciplinary notice will be provided with the following information:  

 

a. The type and reason for the proposed disciplinary action, the date it will be effective, and the specific 

grounds and particular facts upon which the disciplinary action is proposed to be taken; 

b. The non-confidential materials upon which the proposed action is based; and 

c. A statement informing the employee of his or her right to appeal in the manner set forth in this policy. 

 

STEP 1 APPEAL PROCESS: (UNPAID SUSPENSIONS, REDUCTIONS IN PAY, DEMOTIONS AND 

TERMINATIONS) 

 

1) Employees shall have 10 calendar days from the notification delivery date to inform the Employee 

Relations Representative (ERR) in writing of their desire to respond to the allegations resulting in the 

proposed disciplinary action.  If an employee does not request a meeting within the required timelines, the 

right to meet shall be considered waived unless an extension of time is mutually agreed upon by the 

employee and the Hospital Authority due to extenuating circumstances.  The proposed disciplinary action 

will be considered conclusive and shall take effect as described in the disciplinary notice. 

 

2) Upon timely receipt of an employee’s request, a meeting will be scheduled no more than 30 calendar days 

from the date the request is received.  The employee shall be heard by a hospital administrator, starting 

with the first name from the hospital administrator list, and continuing down the list in order until the list is 

exhausted, at which time the list will resume using the first name. The list and its use shall be maintained 

by the Human Resources department.  The list, which includes the following positions, shall be in 

alphabetical order and shall exclude the Vice President of Human Resources: 

 

1. Associate Administrator for Operations 

2. Chief Financial Officer 

3. Chief Information Officer 

4. Chief Medical Officer 

5. Chief Nursing Officer 

6. Chief Operations Officer 

7. Chief Strategy Officer 

8. Vice President of Administrative Services 

9. Vice President of Ambulatory Care 

 

All administrators appearing on the list shall receive annual training provided by the Hospital Authority on 

the principles of just cause and progressive discipline. 

 

If the employee’s assigned administrator is the administrator whose position is next in the rotation to hear 

the appeal, the next administrator in the rotation shall be chosen.  Further, if the chosen administrator is 

unable to meet the time-frame as provided by this policy, the next administrator in the rotation shall be 

chosen. 

  



  6 of 6       

3) The ERR will coordinate a meeting with the Administrator, the employee, and if applicable, his or her 

representative. The purpose of this meeting is to allow the employee to respond to the proposed disciplinary 

action. Within ten (10) days after that meeting, or such longer period as the chosen administrator may 

determine is required to review the matter, the chosen administrator shall provide the employee with a 

written decision.     

 

4) If the proposed disciplinary action is confirmed, the action will take effect immediately or as soon as 

possible, as determined by the Hospital Authority.  Employees for whom termination has been proposed 

may be terminated upon Step 1 affirmation of the termination decision.  If the employee chooses to appeal 

the Step 1 decision and that decision is overturned by an arbitrator or other qualified person and confirmed 

by the CEO (Step 2), the employee will be reinstated with back pay from the date of termination.   

 

STEP 2 APPEAL PROCESS: 

 

5) If the proposed disciplinary action is a Level 2 discipline and the employee is not satisfied with the Step 1 

decision, the employee may appeal within ten (10) calendar days of the Step 1 decision.  The appeal shall 

consist of a statement indicating that the employee is appealing and an explanation of why they disagree 

with the decision.   

 

6) Within ten (10) calendar days of the date that the Hospital Authority receives the notice of appeal, the 

Hospital Authority and the employee, or if the employee is represented, the employee’s representative, 

shall attempt to mutually agree to an experienced labor arbitrator or other qualified person to serve as the 

impartial hearing officer for a non-binding arbitration hearing.  The parties may extend this date by mutual 

consent.   

 

7) If the parties are unable to mutually agree upon and select a hearing officer, the ERR shall request a list of 

five experienced labor arbitrators from the State Mediation and Conciliation Service (SMCS).  Selection of 

the hearing officer shall be determined through an alternate strike method, with the employee or the 

employee’s representative making the first strike.  The strike method shall be concluded within 5 days of 

receipt of the list by the recognized employee organization.  The date(s) of the hearing shall be chosen 

within 10 days after the selection of the arbitrator.  The hearing officer’s report shall be limited to the issue 

of whether “just cause” existed for the proposed disciplinary action.  The hearing officer shall have no 

authority to add to, detract from, alter, amend, or modify any of the Hospital Authority’s rules, policies, or 

procedures.  

 

8) The hearing officer’s proposed decision will include findings of facts and conclusions regarding the 

charges and shall be advisory to the CEO, who shall issue the final decision. The CEO can accept, reject or 

modify the hearing officer’s proposed decision, and issue his/her own findings of fact and conclusions. The 

CEO’s written decision must be served on the employee and include information regarding the right to file 

a petition for writ of mandate in superior court.  

 

 

























 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 6 with Ravi Patel, M.D. Inc. doing business as 

Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 6 to Agreement 194-2012 with Ravi Patel, M.D. Inc., doing 
business as Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center, an independent contractor, for medical 
practice management services at Kern Medical leased clinics, extending the term for one year from 
August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, and increasing the maximum payable by $1,200,000, from 
$2,146,000 to $3,346,000, to cover the extended term. 

 



 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 6  

TO  

MEDICAL PRACTICE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Ravi Patel, M.D., Inc.) 
 

This Amendment No. 6 to the Medical Practice Management Agreement is made and 

entered into this _____ day of __________, 2017, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, 

a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center 

(“KMC”), and Ravi Patel, M.D., Inc., a California professional medical corporation, doing 

business as Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center (“Manager”), individually referred to at 

times as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

(a) The Parties have heretofore entered into a Medical Practice Management 

Agreement (Kern County Agt. #194-2012, dated April 17, 2012),  Amendment No. 1 (Kern 

County Agt. #261-2013, dated May 13, 2013), Amendment No. 2 (Kern County Agt. #134-2014, 

dated March 18, 2014), Amendment No. 3 (Kern County Agt. #157-2015, dated April 13, 2015), 

Amendment No. 4 (Kern County Agt. #587-2015, dated August 11, 2015), Assignment of 

Agreement (Kern County Agt. #376-2016, dated April 26, 2016, effective July 1, 2016), and 

Amendment No. 5 (Agt. #2016-049, dated July 20, 2016) (collectively, the “Agreement”), for 

the period April 17, 2012 through July 31, 2017, whereby Manager provides management and 

administrative services to operate the Clinic in leased office space owned by Manager; and  

 

(b) The Agreement expires July 31, 2017; and 

 

(c) Authority has an ongoing need for the management and administrative services 

provided by Manager, as such services are unavailable from Authority resources, and Manager 

has agreed to provide such services; and 

 

(d) It is the intent of the Parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 

payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 

Manager; and 

 

(e) The Parties agree to amend the Agreement to (i) extend the term for an additional 

period of one year from August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, and (ii) increase the maximum 

payable by $1,200,000, from $2,146,000 to $3,346,000, to cover the extended term; and 

 

 (f) The Agreement is amended effective August 1, 2017; 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 
 

1. Section 9.0, Term and Termination, paragraph 9.1, Term, shall be deleted in its entirety 

and replaced with the following: 

 



 2 

 “9.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on April 17, 2012, 

and shall end on July 31, 2018, unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of 

this Agreement.”   

  

2. Section 5.0, Compensation, paragraph 5.5, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“5.5 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement shall 

not exceed $3,346,000 over the term of this Agreement.”  

 

3. Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment have 

the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

 

4. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

state of California. 

 

5.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

6. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and covenants of the Agreement 

and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.  

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 

 

 



 3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 6 to the 

Agreement as of the day and year first written above. 

 

RAVI PATEL, M.D., INC. 

 

 

By_________________________ 

    Ravi Patel, M.D. 

    Its President    

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY   

 

 

By_________________________     

    Chairman                

    Board of Governors          

     

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

KERN MEDICAL CENTER 

 

 

By_________________________ 

    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

 

 

By_______________________  

    VP & General Counsel  
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
        
 

        
Amend6.CBCC.MSO.073117 

 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 with Comprehensive Cardiovascular Medical 

Group, Inc.   
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 453-2015 with Comprehensive 
Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional physician services 
at Kern Medical.  The amendment extends the term for one year from August 1, 2017 through July 
31, 2018, and increases the maximum payable by $430,000, to $1,485,000 over the three-year 
term of the agreement. 

 



 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 
TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Comprehensive Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc.) 
 
 This Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered into 
this _____ day of __________, 2017, by and between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local 
unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and 
Comprehensive Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc., a California professional medical corporation 
(“Contractor”), with its principal place of business located at 5945 Truxtun Avenue, Bakersfield, 
California 93309. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 (a) Authority and Contractor have heretofore entered into an Agreement for Professional 
Services (Kern County Agt. #453-2015, dated June 23, 2015), Amendment No. 1 (Kern County 
Agt. #624-2016, dated June 7, 2016), and Amendment No. 2 (Agt. #22816, dated October 1, 2016) 
(“Agreement”), for the period August 1, 2015 through July 31, 2017, to provide professional 
medical services to patients of KMC and teaching services to resident physicians employed by 
Authority; and 
 
 (b) The Agreement expires July 31, 2017; and 
 

(c) KMC continues to requires the services of Contractor to fill voids in staffing; and 
 
(d) It is the intent of the parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 

payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 
Contractor; and 

 
(e) Authority and Contractor agree to amend the Agreement to (i) extend the term for 

one year from August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, (ii) revise the compensation methodology, (iii) 
increase the maximum payable under the Agreement by $430,000, from $1,055,000 to $1,485,000, 
to cover the extended term, and (iv) revise the description of services; and 
 
 (f) The Agreement is amended effective August 1, 2017; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter 
set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto agree to amend 
the Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Section 1, Term, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  
 

“1. Term.  Performance by Contractor and Authority shall commence August 1, 2015 
and shall end July 31, 2018, unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this 
Agreement as herein stated.” 

 



 2 

2. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.1, Compensation, shall be deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following:    
 

“4.1 Compensation.  As consideration for the services provided by Contractor 
hereunder, Authority shall pay Contractor a fixed fee in the amount of $430,000 per year at 
the rate of $35,833 per month (“Monthly Fee”).  Notwithstanding the forgoing, Authority 
shall have the right to (i) withhold 5% of the Monthly Fee or $1,792, which shall be paid 
within 30 days after the end of the month if Contractor responds to call coverage through 
Contractor’s telephone exchange 90% of the time; and (ii) withhold 5% of the Monthly Fee 
or $1,792, which shall be paid within 30 days after the end of the month if Contractor is not 
more than 15 minutes late to scheduled clinic start times of 8:00 a.m. 90% of the time AND 
the clinic has patients in the clinic exam rooms.  All services are payable in arears.” 

 
3. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.4, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following:    
 

“4.4 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement shall not 
exceed $1,485,000 over the three-year term of this Agreement.” 
 

4. Amendment No. 2 to Exhibit “A,” Description of Services, shall be deleted in its entirety 
and replaced with Amendment No. 3 to Exhibit “A,” Description of Services, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
5. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
state of California. 

 
6.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
7. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions, and covenants of the Agreement and 
any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
[Signatures follow on next page] 



 3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 3 to the 
Agreement as of the day and year first written above. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE CARDIOVASCULAR 
MEDICAL GROUP, INC. 
 
 
By______________________     
    Viral Y. Mehta, M.D. 
    Its President 
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By_______________________     
    Chairman 
    Board of Governors          
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 
 
 
By_______________________  
    Russell V. Judd 
    Chief Executive Officer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT  
 
 
By_______________________  
    VP & General Counsel  
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
Amend3.Comprehensive Cardiovascular.073117 
  



 4 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 
TO 

EXHIBIT “A” 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

Comprehensive Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc. 
(Effective August 1, 2017) 

 
Contractor and Group Physicians shall provide services, as assigned by the Department chair, or 
designee, as follows: 

 
1. Clinical Responsibilities.   

a) Call Coverage:  Contractor shall provide call coverage 24 hours per day, seven days 
per week on an as needed basis.  Contractor shall be available by telephone to 
answer questions and for on-site consultations when requested by the attending 
physician.  Contractor shall provide a monthly schedule of covering Group 
Physicians by the 20th day of each month.  Authority recognizes that covering Group 
Physicians may change from time to time during the monthly schedule.  Contractor 
shall develop and use a phone log to track calls.  Contractor shall respond to 90% of 
all calls through the exchange and 100% of on-site consultations when requested by 
an attending physician. 

b) Staff Coverage:  Contractor will provide coverage in the absence of the staff 
cardiologist on an as needed basis (not more than eight weeks per year) including, 
without limitation, inpatient consultative rounds on medical/surgical and ICU 
patients, with on-service resident physicians and medical students when present, 
interpretation of diagnostic examinations (echocardiogram, stress test, Holter 
monitor, etc.).  Coverage shall include patient care and a minimum of six hours of 
teaching rounds per week. 

c) Cardiology Clinic:  Contractor shall provide clinic coverage one day each week from 
8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. (except holidays).  Contractor shall evaluate each patient in 
the presence of a resident or medical student.  Contractor shall provide a monthly 
schedule of covering Group Physicians by the 20th day of each month.  One 
Cardiology Clinic each month shall be a designated Electrophysiological (EP) Clinic.  
Authority recognizes that covering Group Physicians may change from time to time 
during the monthly schedule.  Each covering Group Physician shall sign-in with date 
and time of arrival.  Contractor shall be considered on-time if Contractor’s Group 
Physician signs in within 15 minutes of the clinic start time 90% of the time and 
there are patients in the cardiology exam rooms.  Clinic staff shall document if 
patients are present in the cardiology clinic exam rooms at 8:00 a.m. 

d) Group Physicians shall serve as attending physicians in the Division of Cardiology. 
e) Group Physicians shall supervise residents and medical students assigned to the 

cardiology service. 
f) Group Physicians shall perform non-invasive and invasive cardiology procedures. 
g) Group Physicians shall participate in the strategic planning and development of the 

cardiology program. 
 



 5 

2. Medical Education, Teaching and Academic Responsibilities.  Contractor and Group 
Physicians shall: 

a) Provide clinical mentoring to and evaluation of residents and medical students. 
b) Obtain academic appointment at David Geffen School of Medicine at University of 

California, Los Angeles, or one or more California-based medical schools, and 
maintain such appointment throughout the term of this Agreement. 

c) Provide 20 didactic and Department lectures as assigned by the Department program 
director and based upon standard curriculum. 

d) Medical education of medical students and resident during rounds. 
e) Medical education in the clinic setting. 
f) Medical education at outside cardiology sites, as appropriate, based on identified 

needs. 
g) Provide a minimum of six board review sessions per year, as assigned by the 

Department program director. 
h) Participate in EKG conferences as assigned by the Department chair. 
i) Prepare residents for oral boards and review case logs. 
j) Attend monthly morbidity and mortality conference and journal club, as assigned by 

the Department chair, or designee, when cardiology cases are discussed. 
 

3. Service Expectations.  Contractor and Group Physicians shall perform all noninvasive 
cardiology procedures at KMC.  Contractor and Group Physicians shall perform all invasive 
procedures at KMC, as appropriate.  Invasive procedures performed at non-KMC locations 
must be pre-approved by KMC in advance of the procedure.  Contractor and Group 
Physicians shall report on time for all scheduled cardiology procedures. 
 

4. Administrative Responsibilities.  Contractor and Group Physicians shall: 
a) Attend Departmental staff meetings and the annual medical staff meeting. 
b) Participate in medical staff committees as assigned by the president of the medical 

staff. 
 

5. Medical Records.  Contractor shall hold Group Physicians accountable for timely 
completion of medical records and work to improve the quality, accuracy, and completeness 
of their documentation. 
 

6. Other Duties.  Contractor shall provide other duties that may be reasonably assigned by the 
Department chair. 

 
[Intentionally left blank] 

 
 
 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Proposed Change Order #2 with Best Electric 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
The proposed Change Order No. 2 with Best Electric involves upgrading the emergency power 

distribution to B and C wings, due to necessary IT and infrastructure modifications that require 

emergency power loads beyond current capacity in those wings.   

This change order will compensate the contractor for work involving patch back drywall 

materials, paint and installing trim pieces needed at the new electrical panels in various locations; 

paint at the exposed electrical conduit at B Wing; and provide for a credit to repair IT damage 

during construction. The additional work calls for an increase of $34,736, for a new contract 

amount of $698,957.   

To mitigate potential delays with future contract changes, we are requesting your Board’s 

approval for the Chief Executive Officer to approve all future change orders in an amount not to 

exceed an additional 10% of the total contract amount, for a total potential contract amount of 

$768,852. 

 



                                           CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT:

Emergency Power Distribution Upgrades PROJECT NO.: 1250.10922
1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue CONTRACT NO.: HA2016-052
Bakersfield, CA 93306

CONTRACTOR: CHANGE ORDER NO.: Two (2)
BEST Electric
15305 S. Normandie Avenue
Gardena, CA 90247 DATE: 

    DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE ADD DEDUCT

1. Provide a credit for repairs made to damaged IT line at 
Room 3401B.  

-($2,062.51)

2.
Provide all labor, material and equipment to patch walls 
and install trim pieces at all new Electrical Panels.  CP 3

$27,486.40

3. Provide all labor, material and equipment to paint 
exposed electrical conduit installed along the back side 
of B Wing to the Electrical Yard.

$9,311.50

CHANGE ORDER NO. 2       TOTAL (ADD) $34,735.39
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1       TOTAL (ADD) ($5,578.83)

ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE $669,800.00

NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT $698,956.56

     REASON FOR CHANGE

1.

2.

3.

Funds are available in the contract budget to cover this increase in cost.

While installing conduits in Room 3401 a data line was damaged and needed to be 
repaired by outside contractor.  
The original construction documents required the Hospital Engineering department to 
complete all patch back and paint at new electrical panels and conduit locations.  It has 
been determined that this work will be completed by the Contractor.  
The new exposed electrical conduit that runs along the exterior of B Wing needs to be 
painted.



CONFORMANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS:

All work shall be done in conformance with the specifications as applied to work of a similar nature.

SUBMITTED BY:

BEST Electric APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

BY: ____________________________________ BY:   __________________________________

Yoon Hee Ro, President           Russell Judd
          Chief Executive Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT BY:   __________________________________

           Jared Leavitt, Chief Operating Officer
BY: ____________________________________

Shannon Hochstein
Hospital Counsel BY:   __________________________________

         Thad Bulkeley, Facility Director

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

BY:   __________________________________

         Chairman
                            "KCHA"

If the contractor refuses to sign this document, the work listed herein shall be performed on a force account basis.



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Proposed Change Order #5 with Anderson Group International 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
The proposed Change Order No. 5 with Anderson Group International    

The additional work calls for an increase of $52,702.16, for a new contract amount of 

$510,648.52.   

To mitigate potential delays with future contract changes, we are requesting your Board’s 

approval for the Chief Executive Officer to approve all future change orders in an amount not to 

exceed an additional 10% of the total contract amount.  

 







 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Proposed retroactive Agreement with Experian Health, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 16016 with Experian Health, Inc., an 
independent contractor, for patient demographic verification products and services, effective July 
1, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $300,000. 

 



Kern County Hospital Authority
1830 Flower St,
Bakersf¡eld, CA 93305-41 86

perion.
eolth

EXPERIAN HEAITH, INc.
720 Cool Springs Blvd., Suite 200
Franklin, TN 37067
(615) 661-5657 or (E88) 661-5657

Supplier Customer

Add Produc!.¿\@fL@!
This Add Product Amendment ("Amendment") shall be made a part of the Master Customer Agreement dated September 14, 2016, including any

schedules, addenda and amendments thereto ('Agreement"), between Experian Health, lnc. ('Experian Health") end Kern County Hospital Authority, a

county hospilal authority which owns and operates Kern Medical Center ("Customer,' and together with Experian Health, the "Parties"). Th.is Amendment
is sub¡ect to the Agreement and the Terms & Conditions, which ere hereby incorporated by reference. Capitalized tems used herein and not othenruise

defined shall heve the meanings given to them in the Agreement, This Amendment shall be effeclive as of the date of signature by Experian Health
(?mendment Effect¡ve Date").

PRODUCT OFFERINGS AND FEES

PRODUCT OFFERINGS AND FEES. Product offerings and fees specified herein apply to a single facility installation. Experian Health agrees to ptovide

the additional products and services seleded below for the facility listed on Exhibit A hereto. Customer agrees to provide fufher details specified in the
fecility list and administration sec{ion in Exhiblt d HIS/PMS system(s) applicable to this Amendment include: McKesson STAR 2000.

Address & ldentity Veriftcation uses expansive, The Address
sources to provide standardized and verified current contact
information for patients. This toolvalidates and corecls a patient's
name, address, Social Security Number (SSN), date of birth
(DOq), phone number, and county.

: Patient Estimates (Facilities) uses information from a provide/s
chargemaster and payer contracted rates by procedure and
applies eligibility and benefits information fiom the patient's health
insurance plan. Fees are per installation, per connect¡on to a

single petient database and a single chargemaster with up to 10
payer contracts. Additional contracts can be purchased et an
additional qhaçe.
The Patient Estimates Document lmeging lnterface creates an' image file of a pr¡nted estimate from Patient Estimates for use in

, a document fmdlI -3ytilcA-

$r,600

$15,000

$4,300

The Patient Estimates Out of Process Remote Posting lnterface
takes estimate information and loads it into the client's registration
system,

$6,000

Fees referenced above arc slatod at unit æst value. Totals prcsented below conte¡n extended costs.

1

t26,900

N'A

$1,200

$34,420

$1,980

$2,970

$,t0,570

$40,570

ldentity Verification
Transaction Fee shall
be billed as prov¡ded

below,
Estimates may run

an Eligibility
Verifìcation

Transaction to
incorporate benefit
data when there is

not an existing
eligibility transaction

available for use.
These transactions
will be billed as set
forth in the Eligibility

Verification
Transaction Fee

section ofthe
Agreement.

Total lst Year Fees (excluding transaction fees)

. Future Recurring Fees (excluding transaction fees)

PASS-THROUGH FEES, Fees exclude pass-through fees ("Pass-Through Fees'') from state and federal governmental entities ('Governmental Entities"),

Medicaid and Medicare Managed Care Organizations ("MCOs"), thid-party payers, communication tariñs, and/or other similar fees. Without prior notice,

Pass-Through Fees will be billed monthly in addit¡on to all other Fees at the cost that Experian Heatth pays to obtein transaction deta. Notwithstand¡ng

any other provision of the Agreement to the contrary, Experian Health shall have the r¡ght to increase the Pass-Th¡ough Fees to offset any increases in

rates, changes, or other costs from Governmentel Ent¡ties, MCOs and other third part¡es, including without limitation Medicaid and Medicare adm¡n¡strators,

or any increase ¡n the cost of providing services hereunder resulting ftom rules, regulations and operating proc€dures of any federal, state or local agency
or regulatory authority. The Pass-Through Fees are not subject to approval by Experian Heelth,

IMPLEMENTATION FEES. lmplementation fees relate to the in¡tial ¡mplementation ancl delivery of the product offeilng(s). These fees represent a one-

time cost w¡th payment based on the follow¡ng timing: 50% at contrâct execution and 50o/o upon the earlier of (i) CustomE/s first produc'tive use or (ii) the

third full calendar month following the Amendment Effective Date;

SUBSCRIPTION FEES. Subscription fees relate to the ongoing availability of the procluct offering(s) to Customer. These fees are presented on an annual

basis but billed on a monthly basis for the duration of this Amendment. B¡lling beg¡ns the eaf ier of: (i) Customer's f¡rst productive use or (ii) the second full
calendar month following the Amendment Effective Date.

TRAINING FEES. Exærian Heelth shall provide on-site training for all of the produc{s selec{ed above at the rate of $2,000 per trainer per eight-hour dây.

Online training, to the extent available for a given Produc't, shall be prov¡ded at no cost to Customer. The training shall be scheduled at such datæ and

times thet are acceptable to Experian Health and Customer.

TRANSACTION FEES. Transaction Fees are billed per each successful transaction processed. A "successful" transacl¡on shall be defined as an electron¡c

hansaclion that returns a valid payer, data source, or business associate response to Customer from Exper¡an Health as en inqu¡ry sent to Experian Health

EHI Add Product Amendmen (PE & AIU - Kem Medical Center-Bakersf¡eld
Document #00036557.0

Offering Oescription Oty lmplementation Subscr¡pt¡on Transaction



from Customer's HIS/PMS system(s). Transactions become b¡llable to Customer once Customer ls eligible for training and wlll be billed on a monthly besis
for the duration of this Arnendment.

ADDRESS & |DENT|W VERIFICATION TRANSACTION FEES. The Address & ldentity Verification transaction fee (AlV Trensac{lon Fee") includes
Address & ldent¡ty Verif¡cation transac{ions across all product platforms. TheAlVTransac'tion Fee shall be equal to the sum of tho Monthly Base Rate plus

the Excess Usagé Fee, if any, and shell be billed as provided below. These fees are billed on a monthly basis beginn¡ng the earlþ¡ of: (i) Custome/s first
produc{ive use olAddress & ldentity Verification or (ii) five (5) months following the Amendment Effecl¡ve Date ("AlV B¡lling Date'). For any partial caþndar
months, the AIV Transaction Fee ehall be prorated. ln no event will the AIV Transaction Fee be less than the Monthly Base Rate. Prior to the AIV Billing

Date, Customer shall be billed et the Excess Usege Rate.

PRODUCT SPECIFIC TERJTIS

PATIENT DEMOGRAPHIC VERIFICATION SERVICES. Customer shall use reasonable measures to ¡dentify consumeß¡ end will accurately provide

Experian Health with complete identifying information about the consumer inquired upon in the form specified by Experian Health- Customeracknowledges
and agrees as follows: the facility must respond to audit requesls w¡thin 72 hours of notification by Elçerian Heelth fequiring identification of a specific end

use(sJ; the use of the data is for referencæ and verification in connection with Custome/s bus¡ness procÆsses, and shall be limited to requked institutional
risk control, insurance purposes, or the detection and prevention of fraud. Appropriate steps shall be taken to prevent the misuse of the data. All right, title
and interest in and to the deta under contractual, copyright, and related laws is retained by Experian Health and eny applicable third-party vendors. The
data shall not be reproduced, retransmitted, republished, or otherwise transfened for any commerc¡al purpose. The data or results of the data shall not be

distdbuted to the patient or any party act¡ng on behalf of the petient. The date shall be used in ac¡ordance with the Fe¡r Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C.

Sec. 1681 et seq.); the federal êramm-Leach-Bliley Act (15 U.S.C.A, Sec. 6801 et seq,) ('GLB Acl'); the federal Drivers Privacy Protection Ac{ (18 U.S.C.

$ec.2721 et seq.); and such state end local requhements or eny legislation, rules, or regulations as may be enaded or Sdopted afrer the date of this
Agreement by any federal, state, or local govemment body. The data is being provided 'AS lS,' is colþcted from various souroes, including third parties

and may or mey not be completely thorough and accurate.

@u!!-LElcH BLTLEYACT

ADDRESS 6i IDENTITY VERIFICATION - ACCEPTABLE USE CERTIFICATION. Customer certifies to Experian Health that Customer has determined
that its use of Address & ldentity Verification ¡s pursuant to the exception under the GLB Act, to protsct agalnst or prcvent actuel ot Polontlal ¡raud,
unauthorized l¡ansactions, clalms or other liability.

MEMBERSIIIP PROCESS. Gustomer understands that, in accordance with applicable law, Experlan Health must evaluate and approve Customer's right

to receive data regulated by the GLB Act ("Regulated Data") pr¡or to permitting Customer's access lo such Regulated Data. As such, Customer agrees to
complete Bhjþ!!15, as incorporated into this Amendment, in a timely manner. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Customer's access to any servica
conta¡ning Regulated Data shall be c,ontingent upon approval of Experian Health.

MISCELLANEOUS

AUDIT. Experian Health will have the right to audit Customer's and its approved agents' use of the Seruices to assur€ compliance with the tems of the
Agreement upon 30 days' pr¡or wr¡tten not¡ce to Customer, Customer will be responsible for assuring full cooperation with Experian Health in connection
wilh such audits and wiil provide to Exper¡en Heelth, or obtain for Exper¡an Health, ac¡ess to such properties, records and personnel es Exper¡en Health

may reasonably require for such purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Experian Health reasonably believes that Customer has violated Exper¡an

Health's data security requirements, Experian Health may, w¡th reasoneble advence written notice to Customer and at Experian Health's sole expense,

conduct, or have a third party conduct on its behalf, an audit of Custome/s network secur¡ty systems, facililies, practices and procedures to the extent
Experian Health reasonably deems necessary ¡n order to evaluate Custome/s compliance with sucfi data security rcquirements.

BILLING TERMS. Customer agrees to the following billing terms: Due upon rece¡pt.

NATIONAL SHOWCASE SITE: ln consideration of the new Exp€r¡an Health products received hereunder, Customer agrees to cooperate with Experian

Health as a National Showcase S¡te. As a Netional Showcâse Site, Customer shall:
e. Provide e representative to participate in weekly meetings for the fìßt month of usage of the new Experian Health procluds;

b. Provide functionalþ and technical Þedback to Experian Health and its workgroups during the weekly meetings.

TERM OF AMENDMENT. Experian Health reserves the right to rescind the fee structure and terms ¡f th¡s Amendment ¡s not executed within 45 days of
the date of submission to Customer. This Amendment shali be coterminous end run with the Agreement. Accordingly, th¡s Amendment shall remain in full
fo¡ce and efþct for the remainder of the lnitial Term, or any applicable Renewel Term, of the Agreement and may only be terminated as set forth in the
Agreement. For the avo¡dance of doubt, the lnitial Tem of the Agreement curriently runs through September 13, 2021.

Whenever the tems or conditions of the Agreement and this Amendment are in conflict, the tems of th¡s Amendment control. Except as specif¡cally
modified by the terms of th¡s Amendment, all of the Agreement remains in full force and effect. This Amendment may be executed by digital signature and

in any number of counterparts, each of which is an original, but all counterparts of whioh constitute the same instrument.

EHI Add ProductAmendmen (PE & AIV) - Kem Medical Center-Bakersfield
Document f00036557.0 2

500 transac{ions per month $0.30 per transadion in excess of 500 trensac'tions per

month$147.50 per month

Address & lclerrtity Verification Transaction Pricittg
Montlrly Base Rate Monthly Max Transactions Excess Usage Fee



lN WTNESS WHEREOF, en euthorized r€presentat¡ve of esch of the Paftles has executed thls Amendment as of the dates writen below¡

EXPERIAN HEALTH,INC. KERN COUNTY HOSPITALAUTHORITY

Slgned By: Slgned By:

Prlnt Namgl prtnt Name: Russell V.

Title: Tltle: Chief Executive Offìcer

D¡Ût: Date: lane30,2017

APPROVED A8 TO FORM
Legal Seryices DePartment

Kern

EHI Add Product Amendmen (PE & AIV) - Kem M€dlcal Center-Bakersfleld
Document #00036657.0 3



EXHIBIT A

FACILITY LIST AND ADMINISTRATION

PRIMARY FACILITY INFORMATION

Name: KenMedicalCenter-Bakercfield

Add¡rss: 1830 Flower St,, Bakersfield, CA 93305-4lEo

NPI#: 1376623538

Tax lDil: 47-5618278

Tax Exempt: No

(11 yes, please attach a copy of your certifrcate of et<amption)

Company Webslte: www,kernmedicalcenter.com

TypeofOwnershlp: Partnership_ SoleOwner_ Nonprofit

Year¡ in Buslne¡e:

CONTACT INFORÍIIATION

Corporetion LLC-

Product Admln./Suoeru¡er

Contact: Edward Din

Phone: 661-E62.4901

Ema¡13 Edward.Din@kernmedical.com

Enrol lmenl/lmolementation

Contact: Edward Dln

Phone: 661-862.4901

Emall: Edward.Din@kemmedical.com

Bllllnq

Contact: Edward Din

Phone; 661-862-4901

Email: Edward.Din@kemmedical.com

Tralninq

Contacl: Edwerd Din

Phone: 661-862-4901

Email: Eóvard.Din@kemmedical.com

EHI Add Produc't Amendmen (PE & AIV) - Kem Medical Center-Bakersfield
Document #00036557.0 4



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Linda Markham  
 
Recommended Action: Approve 

 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical is requesting approval to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee 
Linda Markham, as Per Diem Medical Social Worker, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective August 17, 2017.  Ms. Markham has the requisite 
experience and skill set needed to perform the work for which she is being reemployed.  Ms. 
Markham will be reemployed for a limited duration to fill voids in staffing. 
 
The Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) sets forth post-retirement employment 
requirements for all KCERA retirees returning to work for a KCERA employer.  The authority is a 
designated KCERA employer.  Under PEPRA, a retiree may be reemployed up to a maximum of 960 
hours per fiscal year, subject to approval by your Board. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the reemployment of Linda Markham, as 
Per Diem Medical Social Worker, effective August 17, 2017. 

 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Request approval of Medical Staff policies concerning Telemedicine, Guidelines for 

Addressing Impaired Medical Staff Members, and the Late Career Practitioner 
 
Recommended Action: Approve policies 

 
Summary: 
 
The following policies are submitted for your approval as required by the Medical Staff Bylaws: 
 
1. Late Career Practitioner Policy – This new policy was drafted to implement more specifically 

Section 4.5 of the Bylaws regarding basic responsibilities of medical staff membership. The 
policy allows for mandatory annual health and/or cognitive screening beginning at age 70. The 
results are reported to the medical executive committee as part of the credentialing/re-
credentialing process. 

2. Telemedicine Policy – This policy was revised by deleting the term “Joint Conference 
Committee”, and adding “Board of Governors” and a Review Date. 

3. Guidelines for Addressing Impaired Medical Staff Members Policy – This policy was revised to 
update the definitions section and to consolidate components of the Physician Well Being 
Committee within. The “Approvals” section was also revised by deleting “Joint Conference 
Committee”, and adding “Board of Governors and a Review Date. 

 
All the above were unanimously approved at the Medical Executive Committee and exceeded a 
50% affirmation vote by the Medical Staff. 

 



Approvals

Medical Executive Committee:
Joint Conference Committee:
Board of Governors:

February 7,2012
February 13,2012

2017

2017
Review Date 2020

I. PURPOSE: TELEMEDICINE

II. POLICY: The Medical Staffof Kem Medical Center ("KMC") recognizes the
advantage and benefits that telemedicine provides for patients and is
interested in reducing the burden and the duplicative efforts ofthe traditional
credentialing and privileging process for Medicare participating hospitals,
both those which provide telemedicine services and those which use such
services. This policy allows for a credentialing and privileging process for
physicians providing telemedicine services. This policy permits a less
redundant and more streamlined credentialing and privileging process. This
policy, by agreement, grants privileges to telonedicine providers by relying
on information provided by the distant-site hospital (i.e., the provider site)
under certain circumstances. Specifically, the Goveming Body ofthe hospital
whose patients are receiving the telemedicine services may grant privileges to
a physician based on its medical staffrecommendations, which would rely on
information provided by the distant-site hospital.

III. DEFINITIONS:

a) "Distant Site" is the location at which the telemedicine equipment is located and
fiom which the Telemedicine Provider delivers his./her patient care services.

b) "Originating Site" is the location at which the patient is located

c) "Telernedicine" is the use ofhealth care information exchanged from one site to
another via electronic communications for health and education ofthe patient or
health care provider, and for the purpose of improving patient care, treatment or
services. Closely associated with telemedicine is the term "telehealth," which is
often used to encompass a broader definition of remote healthcare that does not
always involve clinical services. Videoconferencing, transmission ofstill images, e-

health including patient portals, remote monitoring ofvital signs, continuing medical

KERN MEDICAL CtrNTER
MEDICAL STAFF

Policy and Procedure
Telemedicine

I



education and nursing call centers are all considered part of telemedicine and
telehealth.

d)

IV. PREROGATIVES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TELEMEDICINE STAFF:

The Telemedicine Staff shall consist of Telemedicine Providers who provide diagnostic or
treatment services, fiom the Distant Site to hospital or clinic patients at the Originating Site
via telemedicine devices. Telernedicine devices include interactive (involving a real time

[synchronous] or near real time [asynchronous] two-way transfer of medical data and
information) audio, video, or data communications (but do not include telephone or
electronic mail communications) between physician and patient.

V. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO TELEMEDICINE STAFF:

a) ResponsibilitytoCommunicateConcems/Problems:

1) There is a need for clear delineation ofreporting responsibilities respecting
the performance of Telemedicine Providers. At the very least, the KMC
Medical Staff officers must be informed of any practitioner-specific problerns
that arise in the delivery of services to KMC patients.

2) Additionally, KMC should communicate to the Medical Staff officials at the
Distant Site, through peer review channels, any problems that may arise in the
delivery of care by the Telemedicine Provider to patients at KMC.

3) The President of Staff or designee may enter into appropriate information
sharing agreements and/or develop and implernent appropriate protocols to
effectuate these provisions.

b) ResponsibilitytoReviewPractitioner-SpecificPerformance:

1) Special proctoring arrangements may be made for qualified practitioners at

the Distant Site to proctor cases performed by new members of the
Telemedicine Staff.

Primary responsibility to assess what, if any, practitioner-specific
performance improvement and/or corrective action may be warranted rests
with the Originating Site. If such action gives rise to procedural rights at the
hospital, the provisions of Article *312 of the Bylaws will apply.

2

2)

I

"Telemedicine Provider" is the individual provider who uses the telemedicine
equipment at the Distant Site to render services to patients who are located at the
Originating Site. The Telernedicine Provider is generally a physician, but other
health professionals may also be involved as Telemedicine Providers. Telemedicine
Providers are collectively referred to as "Telemedicine Staff."

I



VI. PROCEDURE:

The initial appointment of Telemedicine privileges for the Telemedicine Provider who will
be providing services to KMC patients from a Distant Site shall be based upon:
a) The Telemedicine Provider meeting the general qualifications for membership set

forth in Section 4.2 of the Bylaws;

b) The Telemedicine Provider's full compliance with KMC's privileging standards;

c) By using KMC's privileging standards but relying on information provided by the
hospital(s) at which the Telemedicine Provider routinely practices.

1) If the hospital where the Telemedicine Provider normally practices is a
Medicare participating hospital, the Medical Staff may use a copy of that
hospital's credentialing packet for privileging purposes. This pack must
include a list of all privileges granted by that hospital and an attestation
signed by an authorized representative at that hospital indicating that the
packet is complete, accurate, and up-to-date.

If the hospital where the Telemedicine Provider routinely practices is
accredited by The Joint Commission and agrees to provide a comprehensive
report of the Telemedicine Provider's qualifications, the Medical Staff may
rely entirely on the credentialing and privileging of that other hospital. This
comprehensive report must include at least the following: (i) confirmation
that the Telemedicine Provider is privileged at that hospital for those services

to be provide at KMC; (ii) evidence of that hospital's internal review of the
Telemedicine Provider's performance of the requested privilege, and

information useful to assess the Telemedicine Provider's quality of care,

treatment, and services for use in KMC's privileging and performance
improvement purposes. This must include, at a minimum: all adverse

outcomes related to sentinel events that result from the Telemedicine services
provided, and any complaints received at that hospital relating to
Telemedicine services provided by the Telemedicine Provider at that hospital.

[Intentionally left blank]

2)

J



KERN MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF

Policy and Procedure
Guidelines for Addressins Medical Staff Members

Approvals:
Medical Executive Committee: August 7, 201

II

t7

I.

Joint Conference Committee: August 13,2012
Board ofGovernors: .2017
Review Date: August 20l}--.2020
Sunset Date: August 2016

PURPOSE:

III. DEFINITIONS

1

2

J.

To ensure patient safety by providing guidance on how to identifu, report and treat impaired
Medical Staffmembers.
To provide assistance and rehabilitation to aid impaired Medical Staffmembers.
To provide Medical Staff members with information and education regarding actual and
potential impairments.

The quality of patient care at Kem Medical Center ("KMC") is the responsibility of the medical staff.

The medical staff has adopted a "zero tolerance" policy with regard to practitioners who manifest

behaviors which may lead to a compromise of quality of patient care, either directly or because it
disrupts the ability of other professionals to provide quality care.

The medical staff recognizes its responsibility to maintain a high degree of confidentiality when

dealing with matters of clinical competence and/or professional conduct. To meet this responsibility, it
is necessary that a mechanism be established to identifu, review and resolve issues involving medical
staff members who compromise or might compromise the quality ofpatient care. It shall be the policy
of the medical staffto provide mechanisms for the identification, intervention and, when necessary, the

referral for treatment, members ofthe medical staff who may be identified as "impaired," as defined in
Section III below.

To effectuate this policy, the medical staffhereby4py appoints the4 Well Being Committee (WBC), to
address concems that a medical staffmember's health, behavior or limitations may affect patient care

and to work with any medical staffmember whose abilities are diminished due to age or illness, to
structure his/her or clinical privileges appropriately. The WBC will be designated as a peer review
committee and all minutes and documentation will be considered confidential.

A. Impairment

Refers to any condition, regardless of cause, which interferes with the member's ability to function as

normally expected. Impairment may exist in one or in multiple domains, including, but not limited to,
psychomotor activity and skills, conceptual or factual recall, integrating or synthetic thought processes,
judgment, attentiveness, demeanor, and attitudes as manifested in speech or actions.

B Impaired Provider

One who is unable to practice his/her profession with reasonable skill and safety because ofa physical
or mental illness, including without limitation, deterioration through the aging process, loss of motor
skill, excessive use or abuse of drugs including alcohol, and displaying disruptive behavior.

C Well Being Committee

The medical staff committee formed to support and assist Medical Staff members with matters
pertaining to health, well-being or impairment.

POLICY

1



COMPOSITION

The WBC shall be comprised of three practitioners with sensitivity and expertise in areas that
are likely to come before it. The Medical Executive Committee, (MEC) will designate the
chairman and members of the WBC. The chairman of the WBC may also ask an individual
with particular expertise to serve on the WBC while it is addressing concerns in that
individual's area of expertise. For instance, ifthe concern about a physician's health or
ability is age-related, a gerontologist might be asked to serve; if the issue is infectious
disease, a specialist in that area might serve.

IV. PROCEDURES

Report and investisation process for "impaired" medical staff. It shall be the duty ofall members ofthe Medical
Staff to report concerns about substance abuse, whether they experience it personally or recognize it in other
members of the Medical Staff. Reports should be made to the Department Chair, President of Staff, or the WBC.
The identity of the reporter shall be confidential and information regarding the nature of the allegation(s) will be

restricted to the extent possible. Any individual, medical staffmember, board member or hospital management who
has a concern that a medical staffmember's health or condition may be affecting or could affect his or her ability to
safely and competently practice in the hospital may refer the matter as follows:

a. The referral shall outline the nature ofconcem and the specific incident, which gave rise to
them. The referral is to be given to the Department Chair, President of the Medical Staff,
CEO or CMO (or designee). If the Department Chair is not the recipient of the original
report, he should be informed as soon as possible. An initial investigation will be conducted
by the CMO. If warranted, the CMO will discuss the incident with the practitioner and make
recommendation regarding whether further action should be taken or whether the incident
documentation should just be filed and trended.

b. If the initial investigation confirms that sufficient evidence exists that the medical staff
member may be impaired, the matter will be referred to the WBC. If insufficient evidence is
found to support further action, the matter will be closed and documents placed in the
medical staff members confidential peer review hle for one year in order to allow for
monitoring of possible trends. If documentation is placed in the medical staffmember's file,
the member will be informed.

U. If suffrcient evidence exists that a medical staffmembermaybe impaired, theWBC will meet
with the medical staffmember to review the issue and evidence. If the consensus of the task
force is that a possible problem does exist, the affected medical staff member may be

requested to have an examination or be referred for consultation, the purpose of which is to
establish whether or not a problem of impairment exists and if so, to prepare a plan of
treatment. The medical staffmember will pay for the cost of the examination or consultation.
The consultation process may utilize a medical staff member or appropriate health care

professional as deemed acceptable by the Chairman of the WBC, President of the Medical
Staffand the CEO.

The WBC promotes and supports the well-being of the medical staff, to protect
patient welfare, improve patient care, and enhance Medical Stafffunctioning. The
WBC works to achieve this purpose through facilitation oftreafinent for, prevention
of, and intervention in alcohol-related, drug-related, or behavioral problems of
Medical Staff members. The WBC aims to foster a culture of mutual concern,
safety and professionalism. In addition, the WBC develops programs to assist
providers in recognizing and reducing stress, and provides counseling resources for
providers and their families.

The WBC will review the behavior, interactions, adverse incidents, and clinical
course of patients pertinent to referral of any Medical Staffmember. Referrals can
come from various sources: self-referral; co-worker referral; supervisor/\,Iedical
Board referral; any concerned provider; credentials committee referral based on

2



background check information (e.g., DUI). The WBC has set a threshold to review
and evaluate any incidents within ten (10) days of referral.

iii. The WBC will base a decision to recommend intervention on results of that review.
It is the intent of the WBC to recommend interventions, which can correct the
difficulty before disciplinary action is necessary. The WBC will identifu the
condition, supportively confront the provider, help obtain indicated treatment, and
monitor the recovering provider during rehabilitation.

The WBC does not hold disciplinary power. The WBC will function in a non-
punitive and confidential manner. All findings and records shall be considered
confidential and not a part ofdisciplinary records. Ifegregious behavior continues,
and there is actual or potential risk of harms to patients, all activities will be
reported promptly to the President of Staff and the Medical Executive Committee
for further action pursuant to the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Upon conclusion of the WBC's review, a report of their findings and recommendations will
be provided to th , CEO, Departrnent Chair
and the Medical Executive Committee Officers. Ifno resulting action is recommended, the
reporting process will end at that point. If the WBC recommends a reduction orrestriction of
privileges, the matter will be referred to the MEC for initiation of the corrective action plan
as outlined in Article XI of the medical staffbylaws.

e. Following receipt of the recommendation from the WBC and, if applicable, receipt of
consultant report confirming that the medical staffmember in question does, in fact, have an

impairment and recommends a treatment program, KMC has the following options:

Impose appropriate restrictions and/or monitoring on his/her hospital practice.

Request the medical staff member to take a leave of absence.

Require the medical staffmember to enter a rehabilitation program approved by the

leadership of the medical staff.
Immediately suspend the medical staffmember's privileges at KMC pursuant to the

medical staff bylaws.

If the investigation reveals there may be some merit to the report but not enough to warrant

immediate action, the medical staffmember's activities shall be monitored for a period
sufficient to determine whether or not impairment exists.

If a medical staff member voluntarily reports he/she is impaired, suspects that he/she may be
impaired, or is currently in a recovery process, the Department Chair, President of the Medical
Stafl CEO (or designee), and the Chairman of the WBC will be notified and a meeting will be
held with the affected medical staff member to determine a course of action as previously defined
in this policy and may require random drug/alcohol and/or occupational health screening.

If the provider agrees to participate in the rehabilitation program, the WBC,
President of Staff and Department Chair will draw up a formal contract specifoing
the treatment program. The agreement will be in writing and will be signed by the
provider. Providers who have self-enrolled in a treatment program, such as

individual psychotherapy or 12-Step recovery group, must inform the WBC of this
commitment. The provider will agree to formal leave of absence ifthe WBC deems
the leave necessary.

If a medical staff member takes a leave of absence or privileges are suspended, he/she will be
considered for reinstatement only upon written request to the President of the Medical Staff as
defined in the Reinstatement of Impaired Medical Staff Member portion of the policy.

Reinstatement of Impaired Medical Staff Member. If a medical staff member was suspended or restrictions
imposed on privileges due to entrance into a rehabilitation program or other requirements, a written request for
reinstatement of privileges must be submitted to the President of the Medical Staff If applicable, a written report

J

d.

l.
2.
3.

4.

f.

ob

l.

h.

lv.



must be received from the rehabilitation program treating the physician, defining the medical staffmember's current
status and identifuing any recommendations regarding the medical staffmember's "fitness" to resume or continue the
practiceofmedicine.Themayrequestanadditionalandindependent
"fitness" evaluation as appropriate.

Medical Staff Member Cooperation If at any point during the process of evaluation, rehabilitation, or
reinstatement, the medical staff member refuses/fails to cooperate or comply with this procedure, he/she may be
summarily suspended from the medical staffand afforded due process as defined in the medical staffbylaws.

Confidentialitv Throughout this process, all information will be kept confidential and any discussion willbe among
the involved parties only. The original repofi, description of actions taken and outcomes of investigations will be

filled in a confidential peer review file separate from the medical staffmember's credentials file. This confidential
file will be maintained by the Medical Staff Office.

IIntentionally left blank]

4

The written request and application reports will be forwarded for the approval through the normal channels to the
Department Chair, Chairman of the WBC, Credentials Committee, Medical Executive Committee, with final
recommendation by the .



KERN MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF

Policy and Procedure
Late Career Practitioner Policy

Approvals

I.

Medical Executive Committee: July I1,2017
Board of Governors:
Review Date:

PURPOSE:
Clinical excellence is a complex composite of performance in many domains, including,
among others, cognitive ability, technical proficiency, communication skills, professional
judgment, productivity, and stamina. As individuals age, both the natural aging process

and specific medical conditions and medications have the potential to adversely affect the
capacity of practitioners to carry out their clinical responsibilities. Given this reality, it is
imperative, from the point of view of patient safety as well as physician well-being, to
establish a process by which late career practitioners' performance and capacities can be
fairly and accurately evaluated. The purpose of this policy is to establish this evaluation
process.

Key elements of this policy are to assure high quality care for the patient, to be

supportive of the practitioner and to address issues that the individual may not recognize.

The Medical Staff of Kern Medical adopt this policy in order to

o Provide patients with medical care of high quality and safety and protect them
from harm

o Identifu issues that may be pertinent to the health and clinical practice of medical
staff members

o Support members of the medical staff
. Apply evaluation criteria objectively, equitably, respectfully and confidentially

SCOPE:
This policy applies to all members of, and applicant to, the Medical Staff of Kern Medical.

POLICY STATEMENT:

Any practitioner aged 70 or older who applies for appointment to the Medical Staff will
complete, as part of the application process, The Physician Assessment and Clinical
Education (PACE) Aging Physician Assessment (PAPA). Practitioners who are currently
on the medical staff who are aged 70 or older will be required to complete the PAPA
program. Failure to complete the required PAPA program will be deemed as an

II.

m.



incomplete application and could be deemed a voluntary resignation of appointment and
clinical privileges.

The clinical skills assessment and health screening described in this policy must indicate
that the practitioner has no detected problem(s) that might interfere with the safe and
effective provision of care permitted with the clinical privileges requested (for applicants)
or currently in effect (for current members of the medical staff). Adverse findings that
indicate potential interference with the safe and effective provision of care with the
clinical privileges requested (for applicants) or currently in effect (for current members of
the medical staff) will be assessed along with other pertinent factors by the applicable
Department Chairman and Credentials Committee in formulating their recommendations
regarding appointment and clinical privileges to the Medical Executive Committee

[MEC] as provided in the Kern Medical Staff Bylaws. The Department
ChairmarVCredentials Committee has the right to request additional information for
further evaluation if necessary.

IV. PROCEDURE:

A. Components of the assessment: For any practitioner aged 70 or older at the time of
hisArer application for appointment or who is otherwise required by the Credentials
Committee to undergo evaluation (including the annual assessment of current
members of the medical staff aged 70 or older), the Medical Staff Office will notiff
the practitioner of the assessment and screenings required by this policy. These are as

follows:
1. The PACE Aging Physician Assessment (PAPA), see Appendix A.

a) Practitioners who are currently on the medical staff who are aged 70 or
older will be required to complete the PAPA program at the expense of
KMC.

B. Review of assessments

1. The completed PAPA will be submitted to the Medical Staff Office.

2. This information, which will be treated as highly confidential, will be reviewed
by the applicable Department Chairman and Chair of the Credentials Committee.
If the Department Chairman is under review, their information will be reviewed
by the Chief Medical Officer and the Chair of the Credentials Committee.
Additional evaluation and consultation may be sought regarding the
interpretation of the results as needed.

C. Outcomes of review

1. If the findings do not identi$ potential patient care concerns in relation to the
expected level of performance of the requested privileges, the results will be

filed in a confidential file maintained by the Medical Staff Office, and the



credentials file will only reflect the assessment and screening process has been
completed with no significant concerns identified. The appointment process will
then proceed as specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws.

2. If the findings identifu potential patient care concerns, the Department
Chairman/Chief Medical Officer and the Credentials Committee will, on a

confidential basis, evaluate the results and will recommend fuither evaluation if
indicated. This could include proctoring of the practitioner's clinical
performance, the scope and duration of which would be determined by the MEC
upon recommendation of the Credentials Committee, with input from the
Department Chairman/Chief Medical Officer. Specific findings that would
identiff potential concerns include low ratings on the Clinical Excellence Core
Competencies Evaluation or significant health issues that would interfere with
the ability to practice medicine in the physician's specialty. The complete
evaluation/findings will be maintained by the Medical Staff Office in the
practitioner' s credential fi le.

a) If the Credentials Committee concludes that the practitioner is not able to
safely and competently perform the privileges requested, a representative of
the committee and/or the Department Chairman/Chief Medical Officer will
discuss alternative practice patterns or modification of requested privileges,
including the possibility of revocation of privileges, with the practitioner.
The goal of such discussion is to be supportive and respecful of the
practitioner and to suggest resources to assist the practitioner.

b) If the Credentials Committee recommends modification, restriction or
revocation of clinical privileges to the MEC, and if that recommendation is
approved by the MEC, the practitioner may request a hearing under Article
XIII of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Throughout this process the intent of each step is to protect patient safety, provide support, to
the practitioner and assist in any resulting changes in practice patterns or transitions. This
process is also available to individual practitioners who, on their own, express concerns.
Inquiries by such practitioners should be directed to the Department Chairman or Chief
Medical Officer.

VII. APPENDICES

Appendix A - The PACE Aging Physician Assessment (PAPA) program

VI

a

[Intentionally left blank]



The PACE Aging Physician
Assessment (PAPA)
The UC San Diego PACE Program is proud to offer the PACE Aging
Physician Assessment (or PAPA).

WHY CONSIDER AN AGE-BASED SCREEN?

Despite their possession of seemingly supernatural healing powers,
Physicians, like everyone else, are not immune are to the effects of
the natural aging process. This includes decreasing physical strength
and stamina and cognitive abilities including: decreased reaction time,
decreased fine motor skills/dexterity, difficulty learning new concepts
and skills, decreased comprehension of complex information, and
decreased analytic processing.

According to the American MedicalAssociation (AMA), the total
number of physicians 65 years and older more than quadrupled
from 50,993 in 1975 to 241,641 in 2013.1Additionally, physicians 65
and older currently represent 23 percent of physicians in the United
States.lWithin this group, two-fifths (39.3 percent) are actively
engaged in patient care.2

Unlike the airline industry, which requires biannual medical
examinations of commercial pilots and mandatory retirement at
age 65, Medicine does not require physicians to undergo regular
medical examinations nor does it mandate when they must stop
practicing. lnstead, medicine relies mainly on physician self-regulation
in recognizing physical or cognitive decline. This approach is flawed,
however, as the impaired physician is often the last to know of his/
her own impairment. As a result, many physicians may be practicing
without realizing that their ability to deliver safe care has been
compromised. As such, determining which individuals may pose a

safety risk is the responsibility of those in the hospital or other medical
setting.

COMPONENTS OF PAPA:

1. Review of self-report health questionnaires
2. Hislory ond physicolexominotion
3. MicroCogTMCognilivescreeningexominolion
4. Mentol heollh screen
5. Dexterity lesl*

*The dexterity test component applies only to proceduralists

TH E PACE AG ING PHYSICIAN ASSESSM ENT
(PAPA) (CONT.)

What PAPA lS:
PAPA is a physical and mental health screening intended for late career
physicians who have reached a certain age (generally 70 and older), but
otherwise have no known impairment or competency problems. PAPA
is designed to detect the presence of any physical or mental health
problems affecting a physician's ability to practice. lf concerns are
identified, further evaluation will be recommended.

what it is N0T:
PAPA is not a diagnostic evaluation nor is it a fitness for duty evaluation.
It rs not intended to be used in "for cause" assessments of physicians
who are suspected of having impairment. Hospitals or medical groups
that have concerns about an individual physician's fitness to practice
should consult with our Fitness for Duty Program's Administrative
Director, Patricia Reid, M.PH., pdreid@ucsd.edu.

Who should use PAPA:
Any hospital or medical group that would like to ensure the ongoing
health and fitness to practrce of its late career practitioners would
benefit from PAPA. Any hospital or medical group that has enacted a

policy to screen late career practitioners would benefit from PAPA.

Why you should you use PAPA:
Evidence suggests that there is an inverse relationship between the
number of years that a physician has been in practice and the quality of
care that the physician provides.3

Why use PACE?:
The PACE Program was originally founded in 1996 to provide clinical
competency evaluations of and remedial education to physicians
identified as having performance concerns.The physical and mental
health screening components of our competency evaluation has helped
detect undiagnosed health problems in dozens of physicians that were
potentially impairing their ability to practice safely. This in turn led to the
creation of the PACE Fitness for Duty Evaluation (FFDE) in July 2011,
which evaluates physicians suspected of impairment due to physical,
cognitive or mental health problems.

Quick Facts

12 PACE Aging Physlclon Assessmenl (PAPA) Progrom (updoted SP, 2016) PACE Aglng Physlclon Assessmenl (PAPA) Progrom (updoled FA, 2016) l3



THE PACE AGING PHYSICIAN ASSESSMENT
(PAPA) (CONT.)

All screening components take place at the PACE offlce in San Diego,
CA.

POSSIBLE RESULTS OF PAPA:

Following the assessment, a final report will be sent to the referring
group that outlines whether the physician is falls into one of the
following two categories and what recommendations exist:

o FIT FOR DUTY
Results either indicate that no presence of illness exists that interferes
with the physician s ability to salely perform the duties of his or her job
OB that presence ol illness exists but currently does not interfere with
the physician's ability to safely perform the duties of his or her job. Re
evaluation may be recommended depending on the prognosis of present
illness(es).

o FURTHER EVALUATION RECOMMENDED:
Besults indicate a possible impairment exists due to a physical or mental
health problem.

PRICING:

Rates are determined based on the total number of physicians referred and
the practice area of the participating physician, i.e., there is a slightly higher
cost ror proceduralists.

Pricing tops out at S2,000 (or $2,200 for proceduralists) and goes down from
there based on the total number of physicians referred. For more information
about pricing and bulk discounts, please contact us.

THE PACE AGING PHYSICIAN ASSESSMENT
(PAPA) (CONT.)

THE PACE PAPA PILOT STUDY:

From August, 2014 to July 2015, the PACE Program conducted a
study on 30 volunteer physicians aged 50 years and older. Of those
who partrcipated , 23o/o ln=71 received recommendations for further
neuropsychological evaluation and 4olo {n=1) were determined to
possibly need further evaluation based on their lrrlicroCogrM scores.

References

1. CME Report 5-A-15, Assuring Safe and Effective Care for Patienls by Senior/Late
Career Physicians, Council on Medical Education. Amerlcan MedicalAssociation.

2. Smart DR. Physician Characteristics and Distribution in the US. American Medical
Association. 2015 Ed.).

3. Choudhry NK, Fletcher RH, Soumerai SB. Systematic reviewr the relationship
between clinical experience and quality of health care. Ann lntern Med.
2OO5:1 42:260-273 .

Needr Further Eval. by Agq

l, 159( 5&59

6&69

.7G79

r 80+

2015 PAPA Pilot Study Results

I Needs Funher Evaluatlon
r Does Not Need Funher Evaluatlon

May Need Further Evaluatlon

For any further questions about the PACE Fitness for Duty Program
Evaluation or PAPA Program, please contact:

?ACE Aglng Phytlclon Alret3ment (PAPA) Progrqm (updoied FA, 2016) l5

7,23%

?2.73X

t, 14ta

14*

Patricia Reid, MPH

Administrative Director of FFD and PAPA Programs
619-471-0569
pdreid@ucsd.edu

l4 PACE Aglng Physlclon Aitersmenl (PAPA) Progrom (updoled SP, 2016l



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

August 16, 2017 
 

Subject: Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee  

Wedad M. Rizkalla, M.D. 
 

Recommended Action: Approve 
 

Summary: 
 

Kern Medical is requesting approval to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Wedad 
M. Rizkalla, M.D., as Associate-Pediatrics, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 hours, whichever 
occurs first, effective September 4, 2017.  Dr. Rizkalla is a participant in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (the “Plan”), which is a governmental plan 
sponsored by the authority for its employed physicians.  
 
The Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) sets forth post-retirement service and employment 
requirements for all retirees receiving a pension benefit from a public retirement system who return to 
work for a public employer.  The authority is a public employer; the Plan conforms to the PEPRA 
definition of a “public retirement system.”  Under PEPRA service requirements, a retiree may be 
reemployed up to a maximum of 960 hours per fiscal year, subject to approval by your Board. 
 
In addition to the service requirements, Dr. Rizkalla is also subject to the employment requirements 
under PEPRA, which provide that a retired public employee is not eligible for post-retirement 
employment for a period of 180 days following the date of retirement unless the appointment is 
necessary to fill a critically needed position before 180 days have passed and the appointment has been 
approved by your Board.  The appointment may not be placed on the consent agenda. 
 
Dr. Rizkalla retires effective September 3, 2017.  Dr. Rizkalla has worked at Kern Medical for 30 years as 
a pediatrician and has the requisite experience and skill set needed to perform the work for which she 
is being reemployed.  Kern Medical has a critical need to reemploy Dr. Rizkalla immediately, to ensure 
there is sufficient pediatric coverage for the clinic, normal newborn nursery, inpatient unit, and call.  
Currently Kern Medical has five pediatricians who cover a very busy service.  In the absence of a fifth 
pediatrician, there will be voids in staffing, which could compromise patient care.  Dr. Rizkalla will be 
reemployed for a limited duration to fill those voids in staffing, while Kern Medical continues to recruit 
for another full time pediatrician.     
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the reemployment of Wedad M. Rizkalla, M.D., 
as Associate-Pediatrics, effective September 4, 2017. 

 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Financial Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and File 

 
Summary: Comments regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – June 2017 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
 

 Other Professional Fees have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of June 2017 due 
to fees paid to the law firms of Hall, Hieatt, & Connely, Liebert, Cassidy, & Whitmore, Hammel, 
Green, & Abrahamson, and Foley & Lardner. The following consulting firms were also paid 
higher than average fees for June 2017: Mercer, Cerner, Kapsis, and Paytech Consulting. 

 
Supplies: 
 

 Supplies have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of June 2017 due in part to 
increased expenses paid to Zones for information systems infrastructure and minor equipment 
purchases. There were also higher than average supplies expenses for food costs and linen and 
housekeeping supplies. 

 
Purchased Services: 
 

 Purchased Services have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of June 2017 due in 
part to higher than average expenses paid for out‐of‐network services, and for consulting 
services provided by CSS Consulting, Health Advocates, and Hall Ambulance. 

    
 
 

 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT 
KERN MEDICAL – JUNE 2017  

AUGUST 2017 

 



Slide 1 



Slide 2 



Slide 3 



Slide 4 



Slide 5 



Slide 6 



Slide 7 



Slide 8 



Slide 9 



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
August 16, 2017 
 
Subject: Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and File 

 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3-month trend Analysis: Volume and 
Strategic Indicators for Kern Medical. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JUNE 2017

AUGUST 2017



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on August 16, 2017, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
August 16, 2017, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice 
the position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3).) Number of cases: Two (2) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the 
Government Claims Act or some other written communication from a potential 
plaintiff threatening litigation, which non-exempt claim or communication is 
available for public inspection – 
  
 
 



 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on August 16, 2017, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957)    
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 


	Agenda
	Recognition
	Minutes - 7.19.17
	Disciplinary Policy
	Comprehensive Blood & Cancer Center
	Comprehensive Cardiovascular Medical Group
	Best Electric
	Anderson Group
	Experian Health
	Med Staff Policies
	Dr. Rizkalla
	CFO Report
	CEO Report
	CLOSED - health practitioners
	CLOSED - anticipated litigation
	CLOSED - CEO Evaluation

